LINEAGE
Organized as the Medical Research Laboratory 19 Jan 1918
Redesignated as the Medical Research Laboratory and School for Flight Surgeons in May 1919
School of Aviation Medicine 8 Nov 1922
Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine 1 Oct 1943
Disbanded 15 Sep 1944

Reconstituted, and consolidated (27 Mar 1979) with

(1) unit organized as 27 Army Air Forces Base Unit (Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine) 15 Sep 1944
redesignated as 27 Air Force Base Unit (Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) 26 Sep 1947
redesignated 27 Air Force Base Unit (United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) 16 Jun 1948
discontinued 27 Aug 1948

(2) unit designated as United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine 24 Aug 1948
organized 27 Aug 1948
redesignated as School of Aviation Medicine, United States Air Force, 1 Sep 1955
School of Aviation Medicine 1 Jul 1959
School of Aerospace Medicine 8 May 1961
USAF School of Aerospace Medicine 1 Jul 1962

Consolidated organization was designated as USAF School of Aviation Medicine
Redesignated USAF School of Aviation Medicine (AFSC) 8 Sep 1989
Redesignated USAF School of Aviation Medicine 1 Oct 1994

STATIONS
Hazelhurst Field, NY, 19 Jan 1918
Mitchel Field, NY, Nov 1919
Brooks Field, TX, 30 Jun 1926
Randolph Field, TX, 31 Oct 1931-15 Sep 1944
Randolph Field (later, Randolph AFB), TX, 15 Sep 1944-27 Aug 1948
Randolph AFB, TX, 27 Aug 1948
Brooks AFB, TX, 3 Aug 1959

ASSIGNMENTS
Air Division, [US Army] Signal Corps, 19 Jan 1918
Department of Military Aeronautics, c. 27 May 1918
Air Service, US Army, c. 18 Apr 1919
Air Corps, US Army, 2 Jul 1926 (attached to Air Corps Training Center, 16 Aug 1926-7 Jul 1940; Gulf Coast Air Corps Training Center, 8 Jul 1940-11 Aug 1942)
United States Army Air Forces, 6 Feb 1942-15 Sep 1944
Army Air Forces, 15 Sep 1944
Air University, 1 Apr 1946
501 Air University Wing, 21 Jun 1948
Air University, 27 Jul-27 Aug 1948
Air University, 27 Aug 1948
United States Air Force Aerospace Medical Center, 1 Oct 1959
Aerospace Medical Division (later, Human Systems Division; Human Systems Center; 311 Human Systems Wing), 15 Apr 1962
711 Human Performance Wing, 28 May 2008

COMMANDERS
BG Edward J. Kendricks, #1955

HONORS
Service Streamers
World War II American Theater

Campaign Streamers
None

Armed Forces Expeditionary Streamers
None

Decorations
Air Force Outstanding Unit Awards
1 Nov 1957-30 Jun 1963
1 Jan 1965-31 Dec 1966
1 Jan-31 Dec 2000
1 Jan-31 Dec 2001
1 Jan-31 Dec 2002
1 Jan-31 Dec 2003
1 Jan-31 Dec 2004

Air Force Organizational Excellence Awards
1 Jan 1985-31 Dec 1986
EMBLEM
Approved c. 21 Mar 1925. Emblem should be revised to meet the standards of AFI 84-105, chapter 3

EMBLEM SIGNIFICANCE

MOTTO

NICKNAME

OPERATIONS
When the flying field now known as Randolph Air Force Base was activated in 1931, it provided a new home for an institution with traditions reaching back to World War I: the School of Aviation Medicine.

The air cadets for whom Randolph was planned have long since moved away to other bases. The training squadrons and commands have changed. The aircraft that used to land on runways of green turf have departed. Only the School of Aviation Medicine remains at Randolph, unaltered except in size, after twenty-four years.

Not only is it the oldest establishment on the Base. It is probably the oldest organization in the Air Force that has continued without interruption on the mission for which it was originally created.

The School of Aviation Medicine was founded in January 1918 to perform research on conditions affecting the fitness and efficiency of military flyers. A school for flight surgeons was added to it the next year.

Its first headquarters were at Hazelhurst Field on Long Island, New York. After moving for a time to neighboring Mitchel Field, it was transferred in 1926 to Brooks Field, Texas, and remained there until its present quarters were occupied at Randolph.

The School has no connection with either the Air Training Command or Crew Training Air Force, the other two major components represented at Randolph. It is a part of the Air University system, responsible to the headquarters of that command at Maxwell Air Force Base in Montgomery, Alabama.

It performs three main functions. As a research institute, it is the central Air Force laboratory for studies of the basic medical problems of men who fly. Every circumstance that might affect the airman's well-being comes under the scrutiny of its military and civilian doctors, from airsickness to vision at supersonic speeds, from noise hazards to escape from rocket craft twenty miles above the earth.
As an education institution, the School is charged with the instruction of all Air Force medical personnel in the specialized procedures used to guard the flyer's health. Since October 1950, only medical officers have been taught at the Randolph headquarters. The School offers a primary course, surveying the field of aviation medicine; an advanced course for officers who wish to make this branch of medicine their careers; a refresher course for older flight surgeons; and a review course to prepare experienced surgeons for their specialty board examinations.

At Gunter Air Force Base, also in Montgomery, Alabama, is a branch of the School that handles the greater part of its teaching. The students there include Navy and Air Force flight nurses, officers newly commissioned in the medical services, experts in medical administration and supply, laboratory assistants, supervisors, and hospital technicians. The Gunter Branch was opened after the outbreak of war in Korea, when the School outgrew the facilities available at Randolph.

Finally, the School's flight surgeons use their specialized knowledge of aviation medicine to diagnose unusual cases referred to them for consultation by the Surgeon General. These patients are rated pilots or crew members with difficult or obscure conditions that may affect their flying status.

Brigadier General Edward J. Kendricks, who has headed this unique organization since 1953, is the twelfth of a distinguished line of medical officers to serve as the School's Commandant. His predecessors have included Dr. Louis H. Bauer, past President of the American Medical Association, and Major General Harry G. Armstrong, former Surgeon General of the Air Force.

In 1942 he was appointed Surgeon of a highly secret aerial task group known as the "Halverson Group." General Kendricks remained with the Ninth Air Force as its Surgeon until the end of the War. Afterwards he was Director of Medical Staff-Ing and Education in the Office of the Surgeon General, until he assumed command of the School.

The Deputy Commandant is Colonel John R. McGraw, former Surgeon of the Ninth Troop Carrier Command in Europe and of the Thirteenth Air Force in the Philippines.

The Gunter Branch is under the command of Colonel Fratis L. Duff, who served with General Kendricks in the Ninth Air Force while it was in Egypt, and later with the Far East Air Force in Japan.

Brooks AFB, Texas. On 1 November 1961, ATC transferred Brooks AFB to Air Force Systems Command (AFSC). This was all part of an Air Force plan to reorganize aerospace medical research. Along with the transfer of Brooks, ATC passed to AFSC (and its newly formed Aerospace Medical Division at Brooks) control of the USAF Aerospace Medical Center, the School of Aerospace Medicine, the USAF Hospital Lackland, and the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory. (The School of Aviation Medicine had been redesignated as the School of Aerospace Medicine on 8 May 1961.) However, the Medical Service School at Gunter remained in the command, reassigned from the medical center to Headquarters ATC on 1 October.
When the flying field now known as Randolph Air Force Base was activated in 1931, it provided a new home for an institution with traditions reaching back to World War I: the School of Aviation Medicine.

The air cadets for whom Randolph was planned have long since moved away to other bases. The training squadrons and commands have changed. The aircraft that used to land on runways of green turf have departed. Only the School of Aviation Medicine remains at Randolph, unaltered except in size, after twenty-four years.

Not only is it the oldest establishment on the Base. It is probably he oldest organization in the Air Force that has continued without interruption on the mission for which it was originally created.

The School of Aviation Medicine was founded in January 1918 to perform research on conditions affecting the fitness and efficiency of military flyers. A school for flight surgeons was added to it the next year.

Its first headquarters were at Hazelhurst Field on Long Island, New York. After moving for a time to neighboring Mitchel Field, it was transferred in 1926 to Brooks Field, Texas, and remained there until its present quarters were occupied at Randolph.

The School has no connection with either the Air Training Command or Crew Training Air Force, the other two major components represented at Randolph. It is a part of the Air University system, responsible to the headquarters of that command at Maxwell Air Force Base in Montgomery, Alabama.

It performs three main functions. As a research institute, it is the central Air Force laboratory for studies of the basic medical problems of men who fly. Every circumstance that might affect the airman's well-being comes under the scrutiny of its military and civilian doctors, from airsickness to vision at supersonic speeds, from noise hazards to escape from rocket craft twenty miles above the earth.

As an education institution, the School is charged with the instruction of all Air Force medical personnel in the specialized procedures used to guard the flyer's health. Since October 1950, only medical officers have been taught at the Randolph headquarters. The School offers (a primary course, surveying the field of aviation medicine; an advanced course for officers who wish to make this branch of medicine their careers; a refresher course for older flight surgeons; and a review course to prepare experienced surgeons for their specialty board examinations.

At Gunter Air Force Base, also in Montgomery, Alabama, is a branch of the School that handles the greater part of its teaching. The students there include Navy and Air Force flight nurses, officers newly commissioned in the medical services, experts in medical administration and supply, laboratory assistants, supervisors, and hospital technicians. The Gunter Branch was opened after the outbreak of war in Korea, when the School outgrew the facilities available at Randolph.
Finally, the School's flight surgeons use their specialized knowledge of aviation medicine to diagnose unusual cases referred to them for consultation by the Surgeon General. These patients are rated pilots or crew members with difficult or obscure conditions that may affect their flying status.

Brigadier General Edward J. Kendricks, who has headed this unique organization since 1953, is the twelfth of a distinguished line of medical officers to serve as the School's Commandant. His predecessors have included Dr. Louis H. Bauer, past President of the American Medical Association, and Major General Harry G. Armstrong, former surgeon General of the Air Force.

In 1942 he was appointed Surgeon of a highly secret aerial task group known as the "Halverson

General Kendricks remained with the Ninth Air Force as its Surgeon until the end of the War. Afterwards he was Director of Medical Staff-Ing and Education in the Office of the Surgeon General, until he assumed command of the School.

The Deputy Commandant is Colonel John R. McGraw, former Surgeon of the Ninth Troop Carrier Command in Europe and of the Thirteenth Air Force in the Philippines.

The Gunter Branch is under the command of Colonel Fratis L. Duff, who served with General Kendricks in the Ninth Air Force while it was in Egypt, and later with the Far East Air Force in Japan.

Brooks and Aerospace Medical Center

In 1959 the Air Force put medical education and training and space medical research responsibilities under the direction of Air Training Command. Headquarters USAF directed that Continental Air Command transfer Brooks AFB, Texas, to ATC on 1 October. At the same time, ATC activated the USAF Aerospace Medical Center at Brooks, and, concurrently, Air University issued orders reassigning the School of Aviation Medicine at Brooks to ATC and the aerospace medical center. In addition, ATC reassigned the USAF Hospital Lackland from the Lackland Military Training Center to the medical center. The last action, the organization of the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory at Lackland, took place on 1 November; ATC assigned the lab to the medical center. The addition of all of these units increased ATC's assigned personnel strength by 4,965.

From 1931 until 1959, the School of Aviation Medicine was located at Randolph AFB, Texas, whereupon it moved across town to Brooks AFB. Shown above is the research laboratory at Randolph.

Brooks AFB, Texas
On 1 November 1961, ATC transferred Brooks AFB to Air Force Systems Command (AFSC). This was all part of an Air Force plan to reorganize aerospace medical research. Along with the transfer of Brooks, ATC passed to AFSC (and its newly formed Aerospace Medical Division at Brooks) control of the SAF Aerospace Medical Center, the School of Aerospace Medicine, the USAF Hospital Lackland, and the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory. (The School of Aviation Medicine had been redesignated as the School of Aerospace Medicine on 8 May 1961.) The Medical Service School at Gunter remained in the command, reassigned from the medical center to Headquarters ATC on 1 October.

Brooks Says Goodbye to Med School: More than 300 guests showed up to witness the last class of aeromedical evacuation crewmembers graduate from flight-nurse training at the Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine at Brooks City-Base in San Antonio. The school is relocating to a new facility on the grounds of Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, courtesy of BRAC 2005. Classes will resume there in May. "As we go up north, we look forward to this new start as an opportunity to improve on what we already do well," said Capt. Shane House, an instructor at the school, during the graduation ceremony in late January. He added, "We are always striving for excellence, and that is what we will do at Wright-Patt." The flight-nurse training program has been at Brooks since the early 1960s. 2011
Lineage. Organized as the Medical Research Laboratory on 19 Jan 1918. Redesignated as: the Medical Research Laboratory and School for Flight Surgeons in May 1919; School of Aviation Medicine on 8 Nov 1922; Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine on 1 Oct 1943. Disbanded on 15 Sep 1944. Reconstituted, and consolidated (27 Mar 1979) with: (1) unit organized as 27 Army Air Forces Base Unit (Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine) on 15 Sep 1944; redesignated as 27 Air Force Base Unit (Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) on 26 Sep 1947; 27 Air Force Base Unit (United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) on 16 Jun 1948; discontinued on 27 Aug 1948; and (2) unit designated as United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine on 24 Aug 1948; organized on 27 Aug 1948; redesignated as: School of Aviation Medicine, United States Air Force, on 1 Sep 1955; School of Aviation Medicine on 1 Jul 1959; School of Aerospace Medicine on 8 May 1961; USAF School of Aerospace Medicine on 1 Jul 1962. Consolidated organization was designated as USAF School of Aviation Medicine. Redesignated as: USAF School of Aviation Medicine (AFSC) on 8 Sep 1989; USAF School of Aviation Medicine on 1 Oct 1994.

Assignments. Air Division, [US Army] Signal Corps, 19 Jan 1918; Department of Military Aeronautics, c. 27 May 1918; Air Service, US Army, c. 18 Apr 1919; Air Corps, US Army, 2 Jul 1926 (attached to Air Corps Training Center, 16 Aug 1926-7 Jul 1940; Gulf Coast Air Corps Training Center, 8 Jul 1940-11 Aug 1942); United States Army Air Forces, 6 Feb 1942-15 Sep 1944. Army Air Forces, 15 Sep 1944; Air University, 1 Apr 1946; 501 Air University Wing, 21 Jun 1948; Air University, 27 Jul-27 Aug 1948. Air University, 27 Aug 1948; United States Air Force Aerospace Medical Center, 1 Oct 1959; Aerospace Medical Division (later, Human Systems Division; Human Systems Center; 311 Human Systems Wing), 15 Apr 1962; 711 Human Performance Wing, 28 May 2008-.

Stations. Hazelhurst Field, NY, 19 Jan 1918; Mitchel Field, NY, Nov 1919; Brooks Field, TX,
30 Jun 1926; Randolph Field, TX, 31 Oct 1931-15 Sep 1944. Randolph Field (later, Randolph AFB), TX, 15 Sep 1944-27 Aug 1948. Randolph AFB, TX, 27 Aug 1948; Brooks AFB, TX, 3 Aug 1959-.

Service Streamers. World War II American Theater.

Campaign Streamers. None.

Armed Forces Expeditionary Streamers. None.


Lineage, Assignments, Stations, and Honors through 5 Jan 2010.

Supersedes statement prepared on 26 Feb 1982.

Emblem. Approved c. 21 Mar 1925. Emblem should be revised to meet the standards of AFI 84-105, chapter 3.

Prepared by Patsy Robertson.

Reviewed by Daniel Haulman.

**USAF SCHOOL OF AVIATION MEDICINE**

**LINEAGE**
Organized as the Medical Research Laboratory 19 Jan 1918
Redesignated as the Medical Research Laboratory and School for Flight Surgeons in May 1919
School of Aviation Medicine 8 Nov 1922
Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine 1 Oct 1943
Disbanded 15 Sep 1944

Reconstituted, and consolidated (27 Mar 1979) with

(1) unit organized as 27 Army Air Forces Base Unit (Army Air Forces School of Aviation Medicine) 15 Sep 1944
redesignated as 27 Air Force Base Unit (Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) 26 Sep 1947
redesignated 27 Air Force Base Unit (United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine) 16 Jun 1948
discontinued 27 Aug 1948

(2) unit designated as United States Air Force School of Aviation Medicine 24 Aug 1948
organized 27 Aug 1948
redesignated as School of Aviation Medicine, United States Air Force, 1 Sep 1955
School of Aviation Medicine 1 Jul 1959
School of Aerospace Medicine 8 May 1961
USAF School of Aerospace Medicine 1 Jul 1962

Consolidated organization was designated as USAF School of Aviation Medicine
Redesignated USAF School of Aviation Medicine (AFSC) 8 Sep 1989
Redesignated USAF School of Aviation Medicine 1 Oct 1994

STATIONS
Hazelhurst Field, NY, 19 Jan 1918
Mitchel Field, NY, Nov 1919
Brooks Field, TX, 30 Jun 1926
Randolph Field, TX, 31 Oct 1931-15 Sep 1944
Randolph Field (later, Randolph AFB), TX, 15 Sep 1944-27 Aug 1948
Randolph AFB, TX, 27 Aug 1948
Brooks AFB, TX, 3 Aug 1959

ASSIGNMENTS
Air Division, [US Army] Signal Corps, 19 Jan 1918
Department of Military Aeronautics, c. 27 May 1918
Air Service, US Army, c. 18 Apr 1919
Air Corps, US Army, 2 Jul 1926 (attached to Air Corps Training Center, 16 Aug 1926-7 Jul 1940; Gulf Coast Air Corps Training Center, 8 Jul 1940-11 Aug 1942)
United States Army Air Forces, 6 Feb 1942-15 Sep 1944
Army Air Forces, 15 Sep 1944
Air University, 1 Apr 1946
501 Air University Wing, 21 Jun 1948
Air University, 27 Jul-27 Aug 1948
Air University, 27 Aug 1948
United States Air Force Aerospace Medical Center, 1 Oct 1959
Aerospace Medical Division (later, Human Systems Division; Human Systems Center; 311 Human Systems Wing), 15 Apr 1962
711 Human Performance Wing, 28 May 2008

COMMANDERS
BG Edward J. Kendricks, #1955

HONORS
Service Streamers
World War II American Theater

Campaign Streamers
None

Armed Forces Expeditionary Streamers
None

Decorations
Air Force Outstanding Unit Awards
1 Nov 1957-30 Jun 1963
1 Jan 1965-31 Dec 1966
1 Jan-31 Dec 2000
1 Jan-31 Dec 2001
1 Jan-31 Dec 2002
1 Jan-31 Dec 2003
1 Jan-31 Dec 2004

Air Force Organizational Excellence Awards
1 Jan 1985-31 Dec 1986
13 Dec 1990-1 Apr 1992
1 Sep 1997-31 Mar 1999
1 Jan-31 Dec 2000

EMBLEM
Approved c. 21 Mar 1925. Emblem should be revised to meet the standards of AFI 84-105, chapter 3

EMBLEM SIGNIFICANCE

MOTTO

NICKNAME

OPERATIONS
When the flying field now known as Randolph Air Force Base was activated in 1931, it provided a new home for an institution with traditions reaching back to World War I: the School of Aviation Medicine.
The air cadets for whom Randolph was planned have long since moved away to other bases. The training squadrons and commands have changed. The aircraft that used to land on runways of green turf have departed. Only the School of Aviation Medicine remains at Randolph, unaltered except in size, after twenty-four years.

Not only is it the oldest establishment on the Base. It is probably he oldest organization in the Air Force that has continued without interruption on the mission for which it was originally created.

The School of Aviation Medicine was founded in January 1918 to perform research on conditions affecting the fitness and efficiency of military flyers. A school for flight surgeons was added to it the next year.

Its first headquarters were at Hazelhurst Field on Long Island, New York. After moving for a time to neighboring Mitchel Field, it was transferred in 1926 to Brooks Field, Texas, and remained there until its present quarters were occupied at Randolph.

The School has no connection with either the Air Training Command or Crew Training Air Force, the other two major components represented at Randolph. It is a part of the Air University system, responsible to the headquarters of that command at Maxwell Air Force Base in Montgomery, Alabama.

It performs three main functions. As a research institute, it is the central Air Force laboratory for studies of the basic medical problems of men who fly. Every circumstance that might affect the airman's well-being comes under the scrutiny of its military and civilian doctors, from airsickness to vision at supersonic speeds, from noise hazards to escape from rocket craft twenty miles above the earth.

As an education institution, the School is charged with the instruction of all Air Force medical personnel in the specialized procedures used to guard the flyer's health. Since October 1950, only medical officers have been taught at the Randolph headquarters. The School offers (a primary course, surveying the field of aviation medicine; an advanced course for officers who wish to make this branch of medicine their careers; a refresher course for older flight surgeons; and a review course to prepare experienced surgeons for their specialty board examinations.

At Gunter Air Force Base, also in Montgomery, Alabama, is a branch of the School that handles the greater part of its teaching. The students there include Navy and Air Force flight nurses, officers newly commissioned in the medical services, experts in medical administration and supply, laboratory assistants, supervisors, and hospital technicians. The Gunter Branch was opened after the outbreak of war in Korea, when the School outgrew the facilities available at Randolph.

Finally, the School's flight surgeons use their specialized knowledge of aviation medicine to diagnose unusual cases referred to them for consultation by the Surgeon General. These patients are rated pilots or crew members with difficult or obscure conditions that may affect their flying status.
Brigadier General Edward J. Kendricks, who has headed this unique organization since 1953, is the twelfth of a distinguished line of medical officers to serve as the School's Commandant. His predecessors have included Dr. Louis H. Bauer, past President of the American Medical Association, and Major General Harry G. Armstrong, former surgeon General of the Air Force.

In 1942 he was appointed Surgeon of a highly secret aerial task group known as the "Halverson General Kendricks remained with the Ninth Air Force as its Surgeon until the end of the War. Afterwards he was Director of Medical Staff-Ing and Education in the Office of the Surgeon General, until he assumed command of the School.

The Deputy Commandant is Colonel John R. McGraw, former Surgeon of the Ninth Troop Carrier Command in Europe and of the Thirteenth Air Force in the Philippines.

The Gunter Branch is under the command of Colonel Fratis L. Duff, who served with General Kendricks in the Ninth Air Force while it was In Egypt, and later with the Far East Air Force in Japan.

Brooks AFB, Texas. On 1 November 1961, ATC transferred Brooks AFB to Air Force Systems Command (AFSC). This was all part of an Air Force plan to reorganize aerospace medical research. Along with the transfer of Brooks, ATC passed to AFSC (and its newly formed Aerospace Medical Division at Brooks) control of the USAF Aerospace Medical Center, the School of Aerospace Medicine, the USAF Hospital Lackland, and the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory. (The School of Aviation Medicine had been redesignated as the School of Aerospace Medicine on 8 May 1961.) However, the Medical Service School at Gunter remained in the command, reassigned from the medical center to Headquarters ATC on 1 October.

When the flying field now known as Randolph Air Force Base was activated in 1931, it provided a new home for an institution with traditions reaching back to World War I: the School of Aviation Medicine.

The air cadets for whom Randolph was planned have long since moved away to other bases. The training squadrons and commands have changed. The aircraft that used to land on runways of green turf have departed. Only the School of Aviation Medicine remains at Randolph, unaltered except in size, after twenty-four years.

Not only is it the oldest establishment on the Base. It is probably the oldest organization in the Air Force that has continued without interruption on the mission for which it was originally created.

The School of Aviation Medicine was founded in January 1918 to perform research on conditions affecting the fitness and efficiency of military flyers. A school for flight surgeons was added to it the next year.
Its first headquarters were at Hazelhurst Field on Long Island, New York. After moving for a time to neighboring Mitchel Field, it was transferred in 1926 to Brooks Field, Texas, and remained there until its present quarters were occupied at Randolph.

The School has no connection with either the Air Training Command or Crew Training Air Force, the other two major components represented at Randolph. It is a part of the Air University system, responsible to the headquarters of that command at Maxwell Air Force Base in Montgomery, Alabama.

It performs three main functions. As a research institute, it is the central Air Force laboratory for studies of the basic medical problems of men who fly. Every circumstance that might affect the airman's well-being comes under the scrutiny of its military and civilian doctors, from airsickness to vision at supersonic speeds, from noise hazards to escape from rocket craft twenty miles above the earth.

As an education institution, the School is charged with the instruction of all Air Force medical personnel in the specialized procedures used to guard the flyer's health. Since October 1950, only medical officers have been taught at the Randolph headquarters. The School offers (a primary course, surveying the field of aviation medicine; an advanced course for officers who wish to make this branch of medicine their careers; a refresher course for older flight surgeons; and a review course to prepare experienced surgeons for their specialty board examinations.

At Gunter Air Force Base, also in Montgomery, Alabama, is a branch of the School that handles the greater part of its teaching. The students there include Navy and Air Force flight nurses, officers newly commissioned in the medical services, experts in medical administration and supply, laboratory assistants, supervisors, and hospital technicians. The Gunter Branch was opened after the outbreak of war in Korea, when the School outgrew the facilities available at Randolph.

Finally, the School's flight surgeons use their specialized knowledge of aviation medicine to diagnose unusual cases referred to them for consultation by the Surgeon General. These patients are rated pilots or crew members with difficult or obscure conditions that may affect their flying status.

Brigadier General Edward J. Kendricks, who has headed this unique organization since 1953, is the twelfth of a distinguished line of medical officers to serve as the School's Commandant. His predecessors have included Dr. Louis H. Bauer, past President of the American Medical Association, and Major General Harry G. Armstrong, former surgeon General of the Air Force.

In 1942 he was appointed Surgeon of a highly secret aerial task group known as the "Halverson General Kendricks remained with the Ninth Air Force as its Surgeon until the end of the War. Afterwards he was Director of Medical Staff-Ing and Education in the Office of the Surgeon General, until he assumed command of the School.
The Deputy Commandant is Colonel John R. McGraw, former Surgeon of the Ninth Troop Carrier Command in Europe and of the Thirteenth Air Force in the Philippines.

The Gunter Branch is under the command of Colonel Fratis L. Duff, who served with General Kendricks in the Ninth Air Force while it was in Egypt, and later with the Far East Air Force in Japan.

Brooks and Aerospace Medical Center
In 1959 the Air Force put medical education and training and space medical research responsibilities under the direction of Air Training Command. Headquarters USAF directed that Continental Air Command transfer Brooks AFB, Texas, to ATC on 1 October. At the same time, ATC activated the USAF Aerospace Medical Center at Brooks, and, concurrently, Air University issued orders reassigning the School of Aviation Medicine at Brooks to ATC and the aerospace medical center. In addition, ATC reassigned the USAF Hospital Lackland from the Lackland Military Training Center to the medical center. The last action, the organization of the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory at Lackland, took place on 1 November; ATC assigned the lab to the medical center. The addition of all of these units increased ATC's assigned personnel strength by 4,965.

From 1931 until 1959, the School of Aviation Medicine was located at Randolph AFB, Texas, whereupon it moved across town to Brooks AFB. Shown above is the research laboratory at Randolph.

Brooks AFB, Texas
On 1 November 1961, ATC transferred Brooks AFB to Air Force Systems Command (AFSC). This was all part of an Air Force plan to reorganize aerospace medical research. Along with the transfer of Brooks, ATC passed to AFSC (and its newly formed Aerospace Medical Division at Brooks) control of the SAF Aerospace Medical Center, the School of Aerospace Medicine, the USAF Hospital Lackland, and the 3790th Epidemiological Laboratory. (The School of Aviation Medicine had been redesignated as the School of Aerospace Medicine on 8 May 1961.) The Medical Service School at Gunter remained in the command, reassigned from the medical center to Headquarters ATC on 1 October.

Brooks Says Goodbye to Me
d School: More than 300 guests showed up to witness the last class of aeromedical evacuation crewmembers graduate from flight-nurse training at the Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine at Brooks City-Base in San Antonio. The school is relocating to a new facility on the grounds of Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, courtesy of BRAC 2005. Classes will resume there in May. "As we go up north, we look forward to this new start as an opportunity to improve on what we already do well," said Capt. Shane House, an instructor at the school, during the graduation ceremony in late January. He added, "We are always striving for excellence, and that is what we
will do at Wright-Patt." The flight-nurse training program has been at Brooks since the early 1960s. 2011

The U.S. Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine (USAFSAM) is an internationally renowned center for aerospace medical learning, consultation, aerospace medical investigations and aircrew health assessments. USAFSAM promotes readiness and protects force and community health by utilizing a range of tools and expertise including environmental and health surveillance, laboratory and risk analysis, process re-engineering, consultation and technological innovation to maximize operational health capabilities and to solve problems through ingenuity and partnerships. The school trains approximately 6,000 students each year.

Colonel Christian R. Benjamin is Commander, U.S. Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine (USAFSAM),

Air Force Order of Battle
Created: 16 Dec 2010
Updated:

Sources